
CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

**Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate 
the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information to 
request this service, please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 

 
MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 

Beloit City Plan Commission 
Wednesday, March 6, 2013 at 7:00 PM 

The Forum 
Beloit City Hall, First Floor 

100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the February 20, 2013 Meeting 

3. Certified Survey Map – Beloit Memorial Hospital - 1650 Lee Lane 
Review and consideration of a two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 
1650 Lee Lane in the City of Beloit 

4. Certified Survey Map – East Hart Road Immediately East of I-39/I-90 
Review and consideration of a one-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located on 
East Hart Road immediately east of I-39/I-90 in the Town of Turtle 

5. Conditional Use Permit – Self-Service Storage - 3022 Ford Street 
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Conditional Use Permit for a self-service 
storage use in conjunction with the rental of trucks and trailers in a C-3, Community 
Commercial District, for the property located at 3022 Ford Street 

6. Alley Vacation – North-South Alley Located in the Block Bound by North Street, Sixth 
Street, Olympian Boulevard and Fourth Street 
Public hearing, review and consideration of the vacation of an unnamed north-south alley 
located in the block bound by North Street, Sixth Street, Olympian Boulevard, and Fourth 
Street  

7. Comprehensive Plan Amendment – 1528 and 1532 Forest Avenue and 1533 W. Grand 
Avenue  
Public hearing, review and consideration of an amendment to the Future Land Use Map of 
the City’s Comprehensive Plan from Single-Family Residential – Urban to Institutional and 
Community Services for the properties located at 1528 and 1532 Forest Avenue and 1533 
W. Grand Avenue 



8. Ordinance to Amend Various Sections of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of 
Beloit Pertaining to the Reorganization of the Community Development Department  
Public hearing, review and consideration of an amendment to various sections of the Code 
of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit Pertaining to the Reorganization of the 
Community Development Department 

9. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 

10. Adjournment 

If you are unable to attend this meeting, please contact Gail Riddle in the Planning Office at 364-6700 no 
later than 4:00 PM the day before the meeting. 

Notice Mailed:  March 1, 2013 Approved: Julie Christensen  
  Community Development Director 



Page 1 of 5

MINUTES
BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION
Wednesday, February 20, 2013

The Forum, Beloit City Hall
100 State Street, Beloit

1. Call to Order and Roll Call
Chairperson Ramsden called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. Gail Riddle called the
roll. Present was Chairperson Ramsden, Commissioner Jacobsen, Commissioner
Moore, Commissioner Faragher, and Commissioner Kincaid. Commissioner Smith,
Commissioner Kelly, and Commissioner Seifarth were absent.

2. Approval of the Minutes of the February 6, 2013 Meeting
Commissioner Faragher moved and Commissioner Moore seconded a motion to
approve the February 6, 2013 minutes. The minutes were approved, with a vote of
4-0.

3. Appointment of a Plan Commission member to the Greater Beloit Economic
Development Corporation
Commissioner Moore made a motion to nominate Commissioner Jacobsen to the
Greater Beloit Economic Development Corporation and the motion was seconded
by Commissioner Faragher. The motion carried, with a vote of 4-0.

4. Certified Survey Map – Beloit Memorial Hospital – 1650 Lee Lane
Review and consideration of a two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property
located at 1650 Lee Lane in the City of Beloit.

Commissioner Jacobsen had to abstain from voting on this item because of a
conflict of interest, so it was laid over because of lack of quorum.

5. Certified Survey Map – Terrapin Acres Corp – South Petter Road
Review and consideration of a one-lot Certified Survey Map for the property
located on South Peter Road south of County Trunk J in the Town of Turtle.

Ms. Christensen summarized the staff report and recommendation.

Commissioner Faragher moved and Commissioner Jacobsen seconded a motion to
approve the Certified Survey Map. The motion carried. (4-0)



Page 2 of 5

6. Zoning Text and Map Amendment – Wellhead Protection Ordinance
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment to
create Section 5-800 of the Zoning Ordinance to be known as the Wellhead
Protection Ordinance, and to create a Map Amendment which would establish a
Wellhead Protection Overlay District.

Harry Mathos, Director of Water Resources, presented a brief PowerPoint on the
Wellhead Protection Ordinance. Mr. Mathos also gave an explanation of the
purpose of the Wellhead Protection Ordinance and the details of who would be
impacted by the adoption of the Ordinance.

Commissioner Jacobsen asked Ms. Christensen for clarification on the areas that
impacted by the Wellhead Protection Ordinance, explaining that the Wellhead
Protection Ordinance would have no impact on single-family residential properties.

Chairperson Ramsden opened the Public Hearing.

Jason Braun, property owner of 510 & 522 Broad St, and 524 St. Paul, stated that he
was opposed to the Wellhead Protection Ordinance as proposed. He explained that
he had spoken to staff at the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR),
and they had indicated that this ordinance was voluntary and not mandated by
them. Ms. Christensen commented that from her understanding this would not be
voluntary, but a requirement around all the City’s wells. Mr. Braun commented
that he would like for the Board to take into consideration the potential land value
and what would happen to the properties in future generations. He also asked
whether a new conditional use permit would be required every time the property
sold. Ms. Christensen commented that a Conditional Use Permit goes with the
property and once it is established it stays in place forever.

Harry Mathos, Director of Water Resources, explained that the City had received a
letter from DNR on July 11, 2011, stating that the City would be required to adopt a
Wellhead Protection Ordinance for all wells within 18 months, and that the City
had already gotten an extension to ensure that they had gotten everything right
within the ordinance.

Mike Kellicut, business owner of 2601 Park Avenue, wanted to know if this would
apply in the Township. Ms. Christensen answered that the City Manager had
indicated that we impose the same requirements in the towns because they are
part of the City’s Water Utility.

Commissioner Ramsden asked Mr. Kellicut what the Wellhead Protection Ordinance
would require of him that is not already required. Mr. Kellicut commented that he
does not really understand it himself, but if he has to go through the Conditional
Use and do environmental studies, it would be an additional expense on him as a



Page 3 of 5

small business owner. Ms. Christensen commented that unless he is expanding or
re-building it would have no effect on him.

Chris Proctor, property owner of 631 St. Paul Avenue, asked how much the studies
would cost and how long the studies would take to complete. Ms. Christensen
commented that right now the ordinance does not have a cap on cost and that they
would have to get bids. Mr. Mathos commented that he would make some
contacts related to the costs and get estimates.

Tom Pohlman, property owner of 2785 Park Avenue, stated that his concerns were
related to the cost and the potential loss of business because of the additional
burdens. Mr. Pohlman said that with no limitations on professional fees, this could
be crippling to smaller businesses. Another concern for Mr. Pohlman would be the
Conditional Use Permit burden which could be an enormous expense to any
business. Mr. Pohlman commented that it is difficult with the way it is worded to
predict a cost but does not feel this would be an acceptable amount.

Roger Kimmon, property owner of 2549 Park Avenue, asked if the City knew how
many businesses were affected. Ms. Christensen said that she thinks it is about 200
businesses. Mr. Kimmon said that his concern was that they did not know the cost
of analysis and that the cost would mainly fall on the small business owner. Mr.
Kimmon stated that another concern is that now technically one of his properties is
worthless because this would limit what he can do with it and who can be there.

Commissioner Ramsden asked Mr. Kimmon if he now has certain rules from DNR on
what he can and cannot do. Mr. Kimmon stated that yes he does, but they are not
audited or checked.

Fred Braun, property owner of 510 Broad St., wanted to know if the July 11, 2011
letter available for public viewing. Ms. Christensen answered that she would get a
copy for him later.

Ted House, 701 White Avenue, representing Fairbanks Morse, commented that
they are half in and half out of the district and wanted to know how this would
apply to them. Mr. Mathos said that he would assume that the ordinance would
apply to the entire site.

Patrick Bliss, 2581 Park Avenue, stated that he wanted the City to know that they
are regulated with their solvents, oil and antifreeze and are environmentally
controlled to a certain extent.

Chairperson Ramsden closed the Public Hearing.



Page 4 of 5

Commissioner Jacobsen commented that she thinks it is great that so many
concerned citizens came out to help work through this. Ms. Jacobsen asked if the
Board has the authority to recommend other things that should move to the other
list and Ms. Christensen answered that they could.

Mr. Mathos commented that most businesses are already covered and this would
just enhance their operation.

Commissioner Ramsden said that he feels the City should give some consideration
to the people affected and try to minimize the cost.

Commissioner asked about the Town of Beloit following along with the City on this
ordinance. Mr. Mathos read clause 26A, referencing the Water Utility agreement
with the Town of Beloit, which contains a cooperative planning clause that calls for
master planning and cooperative effort regarding future developments in
relationship with water resources.

Commissioner Moore asked if the compliance letter to comply would be going out
to the town just as it did to the City. Mr. Mathos answered that they would not
necessarily be contacted because the City owns the water utility.

Commissioner Faragher moved and Commissioner to adopt the Zoning Text and
Map Amendment with additional requests to set limitations on consultant fees in
the ordinance, review the permitted and conditional uses in order to allow as many
existing uses as possible, and to make sure that the requirements contained in
Section 5-812 are not onerous and unreasonable or duplicate existing
requirements. Commissioner Jacobsen seconded the motion. The motion carried,
with a vote of 4-0.

7. Connections: City Center Plan
Review and consideration of the Connections: City Center Plan

Ryan Garcia, Schreiber Anderson and Associates, presented a PowerPoint on the
details of the Connections: City Center Plan. Mr. Garcia stated that the plan is a
great opportunity for the City of Beloit and South Beloit to work together and will
benefit both communities.

Commissioner Ramsden commented that he thinks the overall concept is really
good.

Commissioner Faragher inquired about the junkyard on the Stateline, and Mr.
Garcia commented that they do recognize them as a business and a place of
employment, as well as other businesses in the area.



Page 5 of 5

Commissioner Faragher moved and Commissioner Moore seconded approval of the
Connections: City Center Plan. The motion carried.

8. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items
Ms. Christensen stated that the Conditional Use Permit for alcohol sales at 1623
Park Avenue was denied. The Rezoning for Lee Lane Park was approved. A Public
Hearing was held on the Comprehensive Plan Amendment for the Hackett School
site and 501 Prospect. Action will take place on these two items at the next City
Council meeting. The Comprehensive Plan Amendment for 20 Park Avenue was
withdrawn.

9. Adjournment
The meeting adjourned at 8:45 PM.

Respectfully submitted,
Gail Riddle



March 6 Staff Report, CSM, 1650 Lee Lane

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: March 6, 2013 Agenda Item: 3 File Number: CSM-2013-02

Applicant: R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc. Owner: Beloit Memorial Hospital Location: 1650 Lee Lane

Existing Zoning: C-1, Office District Existing Land Use: Vacant & Office Total Area: 16.19 Acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc. has submitted an Application for the Review of a Minor Subdivision and a 2-Lot Certified Survey
Map (CSM) for the property located at 1650 Lee Lane. According to Section 12.05(1)(c) of the Subdivision Ordinance, the Plan
Commission shall recommend to the City Council approval, conditional approval, or rejection of any minor subdivision of land
within the City that involves the dedication of land to the public.

Key Issues:
 The intent of the proposed CSM is to create a buildable parcel (Lot 1) for a proposed cancer center that will be

operated by Beloit Memorial Hospital and UW Health. Planning staff is currently reviewing site plans for this project.
 Proposed Lot 2 includes the existing clinic building and parking lot and several acres of vacant land.
 Proposed Lot 1 is 5.288 acres in area and includes 496.84 feet of frontage on Lee Lane, 333.65 feet of frontage on

Milwaukee Road, and a public sidewalk easement near the stoplight that is 8 feet wide and approximately 114 feet
long.

 Proposed Lot 2 is 10.898 acres in area and includes 639.23 feet of frontage on Lee Lane.
 Both proposed lots meet the minimum development standards for properties zoned C-1, Office District.
 The proposed CSM must be reviewed by the City Council because of the perpetual public sidewalk easement.
 The City Assessor’s Office has reviewed the proposed CSM and has noted that proposed Lot 1 will be addressed as

1670 Lee Lane, with proposed Lot 2 retaining an address of 1650 Lee Lane.
 AT&T has reviewed the proposed CSM and has noted the presence of buried cable in the right-of-way adjacent to

proposed Lot 1. The City’s other Review Agents did not submit any comments.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The Comprehensive Plan recommends Community Commercial uses, which includes larger office uses serving the entire
community and nearby communities. This proposed land division is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. Consideration of
this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the
property located at 1650 Lee Lane, subject to the following conditions:

1. Lot 1 shall be addressed as 1670 Lee Lane and Lot 2 shall be addressed as 1650 Lee Lane.
2. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 31, 2013.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: CSM, Application, and Proposed Site Plan.



March 6 Staff Report, CSM, 1650 Lee Lane



March 6 Staff Report, CSM, 1650 Lee Lane



March 6 Staff Report, CSM, 1650 Lee Lane



March 6 Staff Report, CSM, 1650 Lee Lane



March 6 Staff Report, CSM, 1650 Lee Lane



CSM-2013-03,East Hart Road (TOT).docx 

 

CITY OF BELOIT 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 

Meeting Date: March 6, 2013 

 

Agenda Item: 4 File Number: CSM-2013-03 

Applicant: Combs & Associates, Inc. 

 

Owner: Henry Knueppel Location: East Hart Road, Town of 
Turtle 

Existing Zoning: A1, Exclusive 
Agriculture District (Town Zoning) 

Existing Land Use: Agricultural Uses CSM Area: 21.754 Acres 

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
In accordance with Section 12.05 of the Subdivision Ordinance, the applicant has submitted an Application for Review of a Minor 
Subdivision and a one-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for property located on East Hart Road immediately east of I-39/I-90 in the 
Town of Turtle within the City’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction. The attached Location Map shows the location of the property involved 
in this application.   
 
 
Key Issues: 

 Proposed Lot 1 was formerly connected with the lot located to the west of Interstate 90, however, both lots were separated 
in the 1950s or 1960s during the construction of Interstate 90. Both lots share the same parcel identification number. 

 Before the property can be sold, Rock County is requiring that proposed Lot 1 be officially subdivided and a separate 
parcel identification number be assigned.  

 Proposed Lot 1 is approximately 21.754 acres in area and is located east of Interstate 90. The nearest intersection is East 
Hart Road and South Lathers Road. 

 Proposed Lot 1 includes approximately 361-feet of frontage on East Hart Road, and 2,575-feet along I-39/I-90. 
 Proposed Lot 1 will continue to be used for agricultural purposes, and no dwellings may be constructed on it.   
 The City’s other Review Agents have not submitted any comments, concerns, or recommendations. 

 
 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  
The Comprehensive Plan recommends Agricultural uses and discourages non-agricultural uses for the subject property. 
Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #4. 

 

Sustainability: 

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 

The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached one-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the 
property located on East Hart Road immediately east of I-39/I-90 in the Town of Turtle, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The applicant shall record the CSM with the Rock County Register of Deeds and shall provide the Planning & Building 
Services Division with a copy of the recorded CSM within one year of Plan Commission approval. 

 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 

 

Attachments: Location Map, Application, CSM, and Resolution. 



CSM-2013-03,East Hart Road (TOT).docx 



CSM-2013-03,East Hart Road (TOT).docx 
 



CSM-2013-03,East Hart Road (TOT).docx 

 



CSM-2013-03,East Hart Road (TOT).docx 

 



CSM-2013-03,East Hart Road (TOT).docx 

 



CSM-2013-03,East Hart Road (TOT).docx 

 



CSM-2013-03,East Hart Road (TOT).docx 

RESOLUTION 

APPROVING A ONE-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED ON EAST HART ROAD IMMEDIATELY  

EAST OF I-39/I-90IN THE TOWN OF TURTLE 

 

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of 

Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan Commission of the 

City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within the 

extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the attached one-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located on East Hart 

Road immediately east of I-39/I-90  in the Town of Turtle is located within the extraterritorial jurisdiction 

of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the proposed  

one-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 

 

Commencing at the East Quarter corner of Section 17, aforesaid; thence South 0°18’53” 

West 70.00 feet along the East line of said S.E. ¼ to the place of beginning; thence 

continuing South 0°18’53” East 2584.58 feet to the Southeast corner of said Section 17; 

thence North 89°41’23” West 374.40 feet along the South line of said S.E. ¼ to the East 

right of way line of I-90; thence North 0°38’26” East 2575.06 feet along said Easterly 

line to the Southerly line of Hart Road; thence along said Southerly line as follows: South 

89°15’157” East 60.78 feet; thence North 85°01’25” East 100.50 feet; thence North 

20°16’49” East 1.34 feet; thence South 89°32’41” East 198.44 feet to the place of 

beginning. Located in the NE ¼ of the SE ¼  and part of the SE ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 

17, Township 1 North, Range 13 East of the 4th Principal Meridian,  Town of Turtle, 

Rock County, Wisconsin.  Containing 21.754 acres, more or less. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City Plan Commission of the City of 

Beloit does hereby approve the attached one-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located on East 

Hart Road immediately east of I-39/I-90 in the Town of Turtle, subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. The applicant shall record the CSM with the Rock County Register of Deeds and shall provide 

the Planning and Building Services Division with a copy of the recorded CSM within one year of 

Plan Commission approval. 

 

Adopted this 6th day of March, 2013. 

 

 

   

                                                                        Charles Ramsden, Plan Commission Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 _____ 

Julie Christensen, Community Development Director 



March 6 Staff Report, CUP, 3022 Ford Street.docx

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: March 6, 2013 Agenda Item: 5 File Number: CU-2013-01

Applicant: Carlos Vizcarra, AMERCO
Real Estate Co.

Owner: Jenny TeStrake, LN Real
Estate, LLC

Location: 3022 Ford Street

Existing Zoning: C-3, Community
Commercial District & MRO, Milwaukee
Road Overlay District

Existing Land Use: Vacant (Former
Wickes Lumber Company property)

Parcel Size: 11.124 Acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
Carlos Vizcarra of AMERCO Real Estate, on behalf of U-Haul, has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a
self-service storage use in conjunction with the rental of trucks and equipment in a C-3, Community Commercial District and
MRO, Milwaukee Road Overlay District, for the property located at 3022 Ford Street.

Key Issues:
 The attached Location and Zoning Map shows the location of the parcel involved in this application. The adjacent

zoning and land uses are as follows:
North: C-3, Community Commercial District & MRO, Milwaukee Road Overlay District; Retail Store (Shell -

Gas Station)
South: M2, General Manufacturing; Manufacturing (Hormel Foods)
East: M-1, Limited Manufacturing District; Office Building (Kerry, Inc.)
West: C-3, Community Commercial District & MRO, Milwaukee Road Overlay District; Motel (Econo Lodge)

 The applicant is in the process of acquiring the subject property from the property owner. The acquisition of the
property is contingent upon receiving approval of the requested Conditional Use Permit (CUP). If the CUP request is
granted, the applicant will establish a self-service storage use in conjunction with the rental of trucks and equipment
that would be associated with a U-Haul retail store.

 Self-service storage uses are a conditional use in C-3, Community Commercial Districts.
 The property is also located in the MRO, Milwaukee Road Overlay District, which is intended to provide for and

promote the orderly development and redevelopment of the Milwaukee Road corridor (Section 19.5-600). The property
is near the entryway into the City and is adjacent to I-90/I-39, making it a prime location to operate a business. In
addition, the Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WDOT) intends to reconstruct the interchange layout in the
near future. The layout change will increase the visibility of the property.

 The Wickes Lumber Company formerly operated from this location until 2008. Since 2008, the property has remained
unoccupied.

 The property is 11.124 acres in area and includes one principal building and eight detached accessory structures. The
applicant intends to reuse the existing buildings and adapt them to suit the needs of U-Haul.

 The applicant has proposed to use the principal building (Building “A”) as a showroom with 402 self-storage units, one
detached accessory structure (Building “C”) is proposed to be used for 175 self-storage units, and another detached
accessory structure (Building “B”) will be used for portable self-storage units. The two existing canopies are proposed
for parking and storing RVs. An equipment staging area and display areas for rental trucks and trailers are also
proposed.

 Existing paved areas on the property have deteriorated and are not suitable for parking. Due to deterioration and lack
of maintenance, all existing paved areas need to be repaved. In addition, the areas under the canopies are not paved.
The Zoning Ordinance requires all off-street parking areas, loading and driveway areas to be paved (Section 19.8-
113(d)(1)).

 The applicant has proposed 169 parking stalls, including 6 accessible parking stalls, which meets the off-street parking
requirements for all proposed uses.

 The applicant has also proposed the construction of a 9
th

detached accessory building for a future development (shown
as “Phase II Proposed Building” on attached site plan). The property exceeds the two- structure limit requirement for
accessory structures, which makes it legal nonconforming. In the future, if the applicant intends to construct the
proposed accessory building a Conditional Use Permit along with a detailed site plan of the entire property must be
reviewed and approved by the City Council, or the applicant may choose to demolish seven of the eight accessory
structures (Section 19-6.3.4(g)).

 Metal wall paneling has been proposed as the exterior finishes for the principal building and two detached accessory
structures (buildings “B” and “C”). Metal wall paneling is prohibited with the MRO District. If approved, the applicant
must choose a different exterior finish for the buildings. In addition, the applicant has chosen a color palette of different



March 6 Staff Report, CUP, 3022 Ford Street.docx

shades (i.e. brown, tan, orange, blue, and white) that exceeds the 4-color limit requirement in the MRO District. If
approved, staff will assist the applicant in choosing an appropriate building material and color palette during the
Architectural Review.

 Existing chain-link fencing is proposed to be removed and a new white split rail fence to be installed on the east and
north perimeters of the property (the property edges that are highly visible from Milwaukee Road and I-90/I-39).

 Currently, the property is connected to a septic tank system, which is inadequate to serve the proposed uses.
 The City Engineer is requiring that all graveled areas proposed for parking be paved, and that storm water drainage be

incorporated into the newly paved areas in accordance with Best Management Practices (BMPs) for storm water
drainage. In addition, because of the extensive redevelopment of the property the applicant must connect to City sewer
and water, which is available along the west side of the property on Ford Street (unpaved right-of-way). Other City
Review Agents had no comments.

 A preliminary Site Plan and other supporting documents are attached to this report.
 If the requested Conditional Use Permit is approved, the applicant will need to submit detailed site & architectural plans

for staff review and approval.
 The attached Public Notice was sent to five nearby property owners. As of this writing, staff received a comment from

one concerned resident regarding the proposed use. The resident is opposed to the proposed use being established at
this location, and believes that the site can be used for a better purpose.

 Findings of Fact
Based on Section 2-504 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a recommendation based on
the following considerations:

a. Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to or
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare;

 Subject to certain conditions of approval, the proposed conditional uses will not be detrimental to
or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare.

b. Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate
vicinity for purposes already permitted;

 The proposed conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in
the immediate vicinity for purposes already permitted.

c. Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood
of the subject property;

 The proposed uses may diminish and/or impair property values within the neighborhood.
 As mentioned above, the property is located within the MRO, Milwaukee Road Overlay District.

Two of the purposes of the District is “to encourage and better articulate positive visual
experience along Milwaukee Road, which serves as a major gateway to the City; and to provide
for the continued safe and efficient use of Milwaukee Road.”

 The proposed self-storage use does not contribute to the efficient use of Milwaukee Road, nor do
the proposed building materials and color palette advance a positive visual experience along
Milwaukee Road.

d. Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development and
improvement of the surrounding property;

 The incompatibility of the conditional use may impede the normal development and improvement
of surrounding property. As mentioned above, the subject property is located in the MRO,
Milwaukee Road Overlay District, which is intended to provide for and promote the orderly
development and redevelopment of the Milwaukee Road corridor. The proposed conditional uses
are very similar to prohibited uses in the MRO District (i.e. equipment storage yards).

e. Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so dissimilar or
otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate neighborhood that it will
cause a depreciation in property values;

 The proposed metal wall paneling and color palette described above is inharmonious and
incompatible with the existing developments in the neighborhood. Metal wall paneling is
prohibited in the MRO, Milwaukee Road Overlay District, and the property is within the gateway
into the City and is highly visible from the interstate.

f. Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to serve
the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use;

 The property is currently attached to a septic tank system, which is not adequate to serve the
proposed uses, more specifically, waste from RVs stored on site.

g. Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and
 Adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion.

h. Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.
 The proposed conditional use does not comply with all other applicable regulations of the Zoning

Ordinance. While self-services storage uses may be allowed in C-3 Districts, pending review and
approval from the City Council, the MRO District prohibits similar uses (Section 19.5-603).



March 6 Staff Report, CUP, 3022 Ford Street.docx

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Community Commercial for the subject property and the surrounding parcels.
Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends denial of a Conditional Use Permit to allow a self-service storage use
in conjunction with the rental of trucks and equipment in a C-3, Community Commercial District and MRO, Milwaukee Road
Overlay District, for the property located at 3022 Ford Street, based on the above Findings of Fact.

However, in the event that the City Council decides to issue a Conditional Use Permit to allow a self-service storage use in
conjunction with the rental of trucks and equipment in a C-3, Community Commercial District and MRO, Milwaukee Road
Overlay District, for the property located at 3022 Ford Street, the Planning and Building Services Division recommends the
following conditions of approval:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes a self-service storage use in conjunction with the rental of trucks and
equipment in a C-3, Community Commercial District and MRO, Milwaukee Road Overlay District, for the property
located at 3022 Ford Street

2. All existing asphalt shall be removed from the subject property and a new off-street parking lot shall be paved in
accordance off-street and loading standards in the Zoning Ordinance (Section 19.8-100) prior to the establishment of
the conditional uses.

3. The off-street parking lot shall include curb and gutter along the northern and eastern perimeters of the lot.
4. Metal wall panels shall not be used to refinish the buildings on the subject property.
5. All buildings on the subject property shall be reroofed and refinished with appropriate building materials and colors in

accordance with Section 19.5-606 of the Zoning Ordinance.
6. The existing chain-link fencing on the east and north perimeters of the subject property shall be removed and a new

fence shall be installed in accordance with Section 19.8-300 of the Zoning Ordinance.
7. Trucks and equipment shall only be parked or displayed in designated areas shown on the final site plan. Trucks and

equipment shall only be parked or displayed on paved surfaces.
8. No outdoor storage of equipment.
9. Prior to the establishment of the conditional uses, the property shall be connected to City sewer and water.
10. In accordance with Section 19.6.3.4(g), a separate Conditional Use Permit shall be required before the construction of

any additional detached accessory structures on the subject property.
11. Prior to issuance of Building Permits for this project, the applicant shall submit detailed site & architectural plans for

Planning staff review and approval.
12. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan Commission and

City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Director of Planning & Building Services may approve
minor changes administratively.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Photographs, Conceptual Plans, Rendering, Site Plan, Application, Public Notice, and
Mailing List.



March 6 Staff Report, CUP, 3022 Ford Street.docx



March 6 Staff Report, CUP, 3022 Ford Street.docx

Principal Building a/k/a Building “A”

Detached Accessory Structure a/k/a Building “B”



March 6 Staff Report, CUP, 3022 Ford Street.docx

Detached Accessory Structure a/k/a Building “C”

1 of 2 Canopies for Proposed RV Parking



March 6 Staff Report, CUP, 3022 Ford Street.docx

Accessory Structures



March 6 Staff Report, CUP, 3022 Ford Street.docx

Accessory Structures



March 6 Staff Report, CUP, 3022 Ford Street.docx



March 6 Staff Report, CUP, 3022 Ford Street.docx



March 6 Staff Report, CUP, 3022 Ford Street.docx



March 6 Staff Report, CUP, 3022 Ford Street.docx



March 6 Staff Report, CUP, 3022 Ford Street.docx



March 6 Staff Report, CUP, 3022 Ford Street.docx



March 6 Staff Report, CUP, 3022 Ford Street.docx



March 6 Staff Report, CUP, 3022 Ford Street.docx



March 6 Staff Report, Alley Vacation

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: March 6, 2013 Agenda Item: 6 File Number: VA-2013-01

Applicant: School District of Beloit Adjacent Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family
Residential & PLI, Public Lands/Instit.

Adjacent Land Use: Athletic Fields &
Vacant Land

Request Overview/Background Information:
The Planning & Building Services Division has received a petition to vacate the unnamed north-south alley in the block bound
by North Street, Sixth Street, Olympian Boulevard, and Fourth Street.

Key Issues:
 The School District of Beloit has acquired all of the adjacent properties to the west of the alley, and is the process of

amending the Comprehensive Plan, rezoning this block, and demolishing the remaining houses in order to expand the
BMHS campus to the west.

 The attached Plat of Vacation shows the proposed right-of-way to be vacated.
 This Vacation will return the entire land area to the adjacent property owners. In this case, all of the adjacent properties

are owned by the School District of Beloit.
 According to Wisconsin Statutes, the City Council may vacate an unpaved alley upon the written petition of the owners

of more than 50% of the frontage of the lots abutting upon the portion of the unpaved alley to be vacated. The petition
that has been submitted satisfies this requirement.

 All required Public Notices have been distributed and published and the Notice of Pendency was recorded with the
Rock County Register of Deeds on January 28, 2013.

 AT&T has noted the presence of aerial facilities in the alley has requested a utility easement over the entire vacated
alley. The City’s other Review Agents did not submit any comments or concerns.

Consistency with Strategic Plan:
 Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the request to vacate the unnamed north-south alley in the
block bound by North Street, Sixth Street, Olympian Boulevard, and Fourth Street, as described in the attached Plat of
Vacation, returning the entire right-of-way to the adjacent property owners, subject to the following condition:

1. A utility easement over the entire vacated right-of-way shall be noted on the final Plat of Vacation before the document
is signed and recorded.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location Map, Vacation Petition, Plat of Vacation, Resolution Setting Public Hearing Date, & Public Notice.



March 6 Staff Report, Alley Vacation



March 6 Staff Report, Alley Vacation



March 6 Staff Report, Alley Vacation



March 6 Staff Report, Alley Vacation



March 6 Staff Report, Alley Vacation



March 6 Staff Report, Comp Plan Amendment (SDB Gaston)

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: March 6, 2013 Agenda Item: 7 File Number: RPB-2013-06

Request Overview/Background Information:
The School District of Beloit has submitted an application requesting several amendments to the Future Land Use Map (Map
10) of the City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan.

Wisconsin’s Comprehensive Planning Law, §66.1001 of the Wisconsin Statutes, was signed into law in 1999. This legislation is
commonly known as Wisconsin’s “smart growth” law, although the law does not prescribe or require a particular type of
development pattern. The Comprehensive Planning law requires all cities, towns, and villages that regulate land use through
land use ordinances (e.g. zoning) to adopt a Comprehensive Plan. Comprehensive Plans are intended to guide development
and redevelopment over a 20-year timeframe. The law also requires that land use decisions be consistent with the plan.

The Beloit City Council approved the City’s Comprehensive Plan in March 2008 after an extensive public participation program.
All land use decisions made by the City of Beloit, including any actions regarding official mapping, local subdivision regulation,
and zoning regulations, must be consistent with the plan. The Beloit City Council established a process for amendments (minor
changes) to the Comprehensive Plan on February 1, 2010.

If the Plan Commission votes to recommend approval of the proposed amendments, the attached Resolution will be forwarded
to the City Council for consideration on April 15, 2013.

Key Issues:
 The applicant is requesting the following amendments to the Future Land Use Map (Map 10) of the City’s

Comprehensive Plan:
o 1528 & 1532 Forest Avenue and 1533 W. Grand Avenue – From Single-Family Residential – Urban to

Institutional & Community Services.
 The following table describes the status of the subject properties:

Property Current Land Use Zoning Acres Future Land Use Proposed Future Land Use
1528 Forest Ave SF Rental R-1B 0.15 SF Residential - Urban Institutional/Comm. Services
1532 Forest Ave SF Rental R-1B 0.15 SF Residential - Urban Institutional/Comm. Services
1533 W. Grand SF Rental R-1B 0.15 SF Residential - Urban Institutional/Comm. Services

 The proposed amendments are related to the proposed expansion of Gaston Elementary School, as illustrated on the
attached preliminary site plan.

 The district has accepted offers to purchase on all three subject properties.
 A Location & Zoning Map and Future Land Use Map for this site are attached to this report.
 If the proposed amendments are approved, the applicant will rezone the subject properties and begin demolishing the

residential structures on the subject properties.
 Land Use Analysis

o The proposed amendments would designate all three subject properties as appropriate for Institutional &
Community Services. This would allow the district to rezone the subject properties to PLI, Public Lands &
Institutions District, demolish the existing structures, and expand the school grounds as shown on the
attached preliminary site plan.

o The proposed amendments would establish a new boundary between the single-family residential
neighborhood to the west and the Gaston grounds. The district has indicated that this expanded area will be
used for open space and recreation.

o The proposed amendments are compatible with existing and planned land uses in the vicinity and will facilitate
a significant improvement and expansion of this elementary school site.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
 The City’s compliance with the Comprehensive Planning law’s consistency requirement is the impetus for this request.
 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.



March 6 Staff Report, Comp Plan Amendment (SDB Gaston)

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the following proposed amendments to the Future Land
Use Map (Map 10) of the City’s Comprehensive Plan:

1. 1528 & 1532 Forest Avenue and 1533 W. Grand Avenue – From Single-Family Residential – Urban to
Institutional & Community Services.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Future Land Use Map, Site Plan, Public Notice, Mailing List, and Resolution.



March 6 Staff Report, Comp Plan Amendment (SDB Gaston)



March 6 Staff Report, Comp Plan Amendment (SDB Gaston)

Map 10, Future Land Use (Subject Properties Are Circled)



March 6 Staff Report, Comp Plan Amendment (SDB Gaston)

Preliminary Site Plan –
Gaston Expansion



March 6 Staff Report, Comp Plan Amendment (SDB Gaston)



March 6 Staff Report, Comp Plan Amendment (SDB Gaston)



RESOLUTION
RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF AMENDMENTS TO THE

CITY OF BELOIT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit recommended approval of the
Comprehensive Plan of the City of Beloit (the Plan) on January 23, 2008, and the City Council of the
City of Beloit approved an Ordinance adopting the Plan on March 17, 2008; and

WHEREAS, the Plan may be amended and changed in the years following adoption,
particularly in instances where the Plan is becoming irrelevant or contradictory to emerging policies
or trends, or does not provide specific advice or guidance on an emerging issue; and

WHEREAS, “Amendments” are generally defined as minor changes to the Plan’s maps or
text; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Beloit approved a Resolution to Adopt a Process
for Amending the City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan on February 1, 2010; and

WHEREAS, the approved process directs the Plan Commission to hold a public meeting on
the proposed amendments, and following said public meeting, make a recommendation by
Resolution to the City Council by majority vote of the entire Commission.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit,
Rock County, Wisconsin, hereby recommends approval of the following amendments to the Future
Land Use Map (Map 10) of the City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan:

1. 1528 & 1532 Forest Avenue and 1533 W. Grand Avenue – From Single-Family Residential
– Urban to Institutional & Community Services.

Adopted this 6th day of March, 2013.

Charles Ramsden, Plan Commission Chairman
ATTEST:

Julie Christensen,
Community Development Director



Page 1 of 2

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: March 6, 2013 Agenda Item: 8 File Number: ZTA-2013-02

Request Overview/Background Information:

In February, 2012, the City’s Community Development Department was reorganized (see new organization chart). Prior
to this reorganization, the Community Development Department included the Beloit Housing Authority, the Division of
Neighborhood Planning, and the Division of Housing Services. Following the reorganization, the Community
Development Department consisted of the Beloit Housing Authority, the Division of Planning and Building Services, and
the Division of Community and Housing Services.

Key Issues:
 As a result of the reorganization of the Community Development Department, the titles of Director of

Neighborhood Planning and Director of Housing Services had to be removed from the City’s ordinances. The
new titles of Director of Planning and Building Services and Director of Community and Housing Services had to
be added to these same sections. These Division titles are included in various places throughout the City
Ordinances.

 Additionally, there were also a few references to other old job titles that needed to be updated to reflect the new
job titles.

 Section 1.50(3) was modified to reflect all the departments that are provided prosecutorial services from the
Deputy City Attorney.

 Section 1.54 was amended to reflect the actual duties and responsibilities of the three divisions contained within
the Community Development Department.

 Chapter 25 of the Code of General Ordinances that identifies who is authorized to issue municipal citations of City
Ordinances was updated to include current titles of employees.

 This ordinance amendment includes modifications to the Zoning Ordinance and Subdivision Ordinance which
requires Plan Commission review and consideration and public hearings before both the Plan Commission and
the City Council.

 A public notice was published in the Beloit Daily News, notifying the public of this ordinance amendment and the
dates of the public hearings.

Consistency with Strategic Plan:
 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:

The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached Ordinance pertaining to the
reorganization of the Department of Community Development.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Proposed Ordinance and Public Notice.



Page 2 of 2

PUBLIC NOTICE

The City of Beloit has initiated amendments to various sections of the Code of General
Ordinances of the City of Beloit pertaining to reorganization of the Department of
Community Development. These amendments include the addition of new job titles and
deletion of outdated job titles. The following public hearings will be held regarding the
proposed amendment: City Plan Commission: Wednesday, March 6, 2013; and City
Council: Monday, March 18, 2013, both at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the matter
can be heard, in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street, Beloit, Wisconsin. The
public is invited to attend these meetings. We are interested in your opinion. For
additional information, contact Julie Christensen in the Community Development
Department at (608) 364-6703.

Rebecca S. Houseman, City Clerk
#01-611100-5231-29
Published: February 23, 2013
Published: March 2, 2013



l

l

l

l

l l l l l

l l l l

l l

l l

l

l

CITY OF BELOIT, WISCONSIN

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

REVISED ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

Lead Building Official

Building OfficialsConstuction Specialist

Secretary

Special Programs Administrator

Occupancy/ Housing Specialists

Coordinator

Property Operations

Secretary

Inspection Official/Fire

Inspection Officials I PT

Rehab Finance

Specialist

Secretary

Assistant Planner

2012

Housing Programs Coordinator

Accountant I

Public Housing Coordinator

Inspection Official I

Custodians

Housing RehabInspection Officials I

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
DIRECTOR

COMMUNITY AND HOUSING SERVICES
DIRECTOR

CODE ENFORCEMENT
GRANT

ADMINISTRATION

PLANNING AND BUILDING SERVICES
DIRECTOR

BELOIT HOUSING AUTHORITY
DIRECTOR

PLANNING SERVICES BUILDING SERVICES






































































	Call to Order and Roll Call
	Approval of the Minutes of the February 20, 2013 Meeting
	Certified Survey Map - Beloit Memorial Hosptial - 1650 Lee Lane
	Certified Survey Map - East Hart Road Immediately East of I-39/90
	Conditional Use Permit - Self-Service Storage - 3022 Ford Street
	Alley Vacation
	Comprehensive Plan Amendment - 1528 & 1532 Forest Avenue and 1533 W. Grand Avenue
	Reorganization Ordinance
	Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items
	Adjournment

